
Questions for Request for Proposals for Security Services 

Final Answers 

1) General Information - Section 3.7: If the proposal includes a Prime and Subcontractor, does 
PCCA/SMG want the Subcontractor’s business licenses to be included in the RFP response?  
a) Is the Subcontractor able to operate under the Prime’s city license?  

Both the Prime and and subcontract must maintain their own business licenses. Respondent 
must submit all required licenses for any subcontractors considered under their proposal.  
 

2) General Information - Section 4.1a: Is the security contractor responsible for supplying all event 
security personnel or is event security contracted separately?  
a) If supplied by the security contractor, please provide the average annual hours.  

Event Security is contracted separately through each event. Successful respondent is not 
responsible for event related security.  
 

3) General Information - Section 4.1l: Will PCCA/SMG provide the required training to Supervisors in 
the operation of the control room for CST technician break relief?  
a) If training is the responsibility of the contractor, please provide the requirements for the control 

room.  
PACC Command Station Tech will train security supervisors in all facets of the Command Station 
operations. 
 

4) General Information - Section 4.1a:  
a) Please outline all uniform components and type of uniform required.  

Both a summer and winter uniform are required. Typical show attire should be dress shirt, tie, 
sport coat with company logo and dark shoes. Non show hours’ attire company shirt, pants and 
dark shoes. Appropriate sweater and / or coat are deemed appropriate in the winter uniform.                                 
Security officers are all required to have an identifying I.D. Card worn on the outermost   
garment.   

b) Please outline all equipment to be supplied by the security contractor.  

The security contractor is required to supply all radios, office equipment and office supplies. 

c) Is the security contractor required to provide the vehicle?  
i. If so, please provide the following:  

a. Type (automobile/SUV/4x4)  

b. Identify average annual miles drive  

c. Special equipment required for vehicle (amber light, back up alarm, etc.)  
A vehicle is not required at this site. 
 

5) General Information - Section 5.1b: Please outline the insurance limit requirements for:  
a) Workers Compensation  

Not less than $500,000 each accident, $500,000 policy limt and $500,000 each employee 

b) General Liability  

Not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence  

c) Auto Liability  

Not less than $1,000,000 for any one occurrence  



d) Excess Liability  
Not less than $5,000,000 and self-insured retention of no more than $10,000.  
 

6) General Information - Section 5.2d: Please provide additional detail for what is expected in the 
written reference.  
a) Contact Information Only  

b) Written statement from a previous customer  
At least 3 written references from prior customers. Each should include name and contact 
information for the reference should we wish to contact the reference.  
 

7) General Information - Section 5.2e: Diversity Inclusion  
a) What is the current diversity inclusion %?  

b) Is there a specific goal minimum?  
The current level of inclusion in the form of a subcontracting relationship is 35%.  Per the policy, 
we evaluate based on meaningful and substantial levels of participation considering the 
availability of subcontractors in the given industry. 
 

8) General Information - Section 5.2e (ii) a: Diversity and Inclusion Implementation Plan must include 
levels of minority and female-owned business participation in (i) subcontracting and (ii) workforce 
utilization.  
a) Please clarify if both subcontracting and workforce utilization are required?  

b) Will the benchmark be met utilizing subcontracting only or workforce utilization only?  
Proposers MUST submit their diversity and inclusion plans for subcontracting AND workforce 
utilization.  Per the policy, we evaluate based on meaningful and substantial levels of 
participation. 
 

9) Exhibit A - Does the PCCA/SMG have minimum qualification requirements for security officers 
assigned to the contract?  
a) If so, please outline by position:  

i. Security Manager  

ii. Shift Supervisor  

iii. Roving Patrol Officer  

iv. Security Officer (all other posts)  

All entry level security officers must attend a 5-day security / hospitality in house training class 

and achieve a passing grade. This class is directed by the Security Contractor’s Account Manager 

and his / her supervisory staff. 

Based on an individual’s overall work performance, the Account Manager assigns security 

officers to the Rove and Supervisory positions as needed. 

 

10) Exhibit A - Please provide the average number of extended hours required annually for events. 

(normally officers are required to work two hours prior to a scheduled event and one hour after the 

event).  The number varies greatly with event type and schedule of events year to year.  

 

11) Drug Free Workforce Policy - Section IV: What % of officers assigned to PCCA/SMG’s contract are 

required to be randomly tested?  

There is no set percentage of employees to be randomly tested.  



 

 

12) Drug Free Workforce Policy - Section VIII: Please verify PCCA/SMG’s drug and alcohol testing 

standards. 

a) 10 Panel + alcohol  

b) 12 Panel + alcohol – DOT standards  

The PCCA uses the DHHS Mandatory Guidelines for Federal Workplace Drug Testing Programs.  

 

13) Please identify if there are any required KPI’s or SLA’s? 

No 

 

14) What is the intended term of the contract?  

a) Are there any optional renewal years?  

Term is one year with two one year options.  

 

15) What is the projected contract award date?  

Our current schedule anticipates we will award before the end of November.  

 

16) What is the targeted contract commencement date?  

January 1, 2017 

 

17) Please identify if pricing should be based on the current CBA rates or the new CBA rates projected to 

implement on January 1, 2017. 

The current vendor has a CBA with SEIU, however the PACC/SMG are not signatories to that 

agreement and we do not have any information regarding that agreement.  

 

18) Are radios required to be provided by the contractor for the staff outlined in Exhibit A, and further, 

are additional radios required for events? 

Radios are provided by the successful respondent. r. At a minimum, all supervisors, patrol, rove and 

security officers assigned to the exterior docks are required to have a working radio. 

 

19) Is there other equipment that is required to perform the contract and should be included in the bid, 

e.g. office equipment, vehicles, etc.? 

All office equipment other than the office computer are supplied by the successful respondent. 

 

20) Is the Account Manager referred to at the end of Exhibit A in addition to the A2 & A3 Security 

Managers, or is he one of them? 

The Account Manager (A1) oversees the supervision of all security officers on the site and is an 

additional position in addition to A2 and A3. 

 

21) Are the officers at the PCCA represented by a union and, if so, may we obtain a copy of the CBA? 

The current vendor has a CBA with SEIU however the PACC/SMG are not signatory to that 

agreement and we can provide any information regarding that agreement. 

 



 

22) 13) Wage determination - Will the current wages covered under the CBA with the SEIU 32BJ be used 

or is a Prevailing Wage being established by the City of Philadelphia to be used? 

Prevailing wage.  

23) Health & Welfare - same as above.  Either the SEIU 32BJ rates or whatever the new City’s Prevailing 

Benefit? 

Prevailing benefits  

 

24) Equipment - RFP clearly states the Contractor will provide the equipment, but from overseeing your 

contract it may be fair to insure a level playing field if everyone knows that includes at least 30 

digital radios (more during large shows), 6 cell phones for Management & Supervisors, and Office 

equipment for the Security Staff, i.e. copier and fax.   

20 Radios and 6 cell phones would be the minimum necessary to manage the security staff in 

addition to all general office equipment. 

 

25) Can the Pennsylvania Convention Center Authority provide the pay rates and seniority of existing 

personnel by post? Per the CBA, these rates and seniority would be required to be transitioned to 

new contract if any staff are retained by the awarded bidder. 

The current vendor has a CBA with SEIU however the PACC/SMG are not signatory to that 

agreement and we cannot provide any information regarding that agreement.  


